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PUBLIC WORKS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE
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CHAIR MOLINA: Public Works and Transportation meeting for August 15th is now in
session and for the record, we have in attendance we have the
Vice-Chairman Dain Kane, Members Alan Arakawa, Robert Carroll, Riki
Hokama, Patrick Kawano, and Charmaine Tavares and we also have in the midst
Councilmember Wayne Nishiki. Good morning, Members.
ALL: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Good morning, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: We have from the Corporation Counsel Attorney Howard Fukushima;
and Council staff, Jan Inouye-Ogata, Legislative Analyst; and Committee
Secretary, Jo-Ann Sato. At this point, we have not received any request for
testimony, so from here the Chair will go right into Item No. 56. The Chair will
ask one more time, is there anybody in the gallery interested in testifying at this
moment? Okay, seeing none we shall proceed with Item No. 56.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Are you, are you gonna close testimony at this time or how are
you gonna do that?
CHAIR MOLINA: At this point, the Chair will leave, leave it open for another 15 minutes
and then if we have no other members from the public coming in to testify I will
close it then.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Are you going to, you're getting in on the item itself?
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Discussion. What it appears that you're trying to do is
what we've been doing with everything else is put the fees, take it out of the
ordinance and putting it into the budget -CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Arakawa, can I proceed first to just give us a brief overview
on this and then we can go ahead with discussion.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay.

ITEM NO. 56: RE: FEES FOR BIKE TOUR OPERATIONS (Misc. Com.)
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Item No. 56. The first item on the agenda relates to fees for
bike tour operations.
Personnel we have in attendance here, we have
Milton Arakawa, the Deputy Director of Public Works and Waste Management
and Michele Yoshimura from the Budget Department. The Committee is in
receipt of a Miscellaneous communi. .. communication dated May 21, 2001 from
the County Clerk, referring the matter as recommended by the Budget and
Finance Committee, Committee Report 01-78. During the budget session, the
Budget and Finance Committee referred the matter relating to fees for bicycle
tour operations, for consideration and recommendation for a reasonable
application fee for a permit to operate a bicycle tour business. And I've
transmitted for your consideration a proposed bill amending Section 5.22.020.B
of the Maui County Code relating to application for a permit for bicycle tour
businesses. The purpose of the proposed bill is to remove references to a
specific dollar amount for the application fee, and to clarify that the fee is as set
forth in the budget ordinance. The Chair's intent on this is to have a healthy
discussion on this matter and if a fee increase is desired by this body, refer this
matter to the Budget Committee where the final decision will be made as to what
the permit fee will now be. And, Members, you. have a copy of the fee ordinance
I believe which sets the current fee, application for permit fee at $15 which was
established in 1995 and has not changed since. There are approximately 12
companies that we found listed. in the yellow pages, although all companies may
not provide guided tours as the word tour, which is defined in Chapter 5.22 of the
Maui County Code is a group organized for traveling. So, at this point what the
Chair would like to do is first get a feel from each of the Members as to your
thoughts as far as increasing the permit fees to operate bicycle tours. Now, first
of all my ratiOnale was obviously during the budget session the cost of doing
business has gone up since 1995 ana the County is in the process of putting
together a bikeway and, of course, road maintenance costs have gone up and
the poss ...there is a possibility that the, to process the fees that has gone up.
Now, I would like the, to get comments from Mr. Arakawa first, of the Public
Works Department on this proposed constru(!;tion of the bikeway and ()ther
related road maintenance issues. Mr., Arakawa, if you will.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In terms of ... possible increase of bike
fees from our standpoint as we understand most of the tours of course start at
somewhere near the summit of Haleakala and pretty much go down the
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mountain. A number of 'em end up in Paia and the main County facility that is of
concern to us is Baldwin Avenue. A number of the bike tour companies use
Baldwin Avenue for their routes and for their tours and we, we do have ... a
Baldwin Avenue bikeway project which is on the books and we've just initiated
the planning stage on, on that project. And I just wanted to give you just for your
consideration the projected costs of that that we have right now. We, we have
secured approximately $350,000 in Federal funds to do that and that would
require $150,000 in a local match. The exact alignment of the bikeway along
Baldwin Avenue has not been determined at this point. We're gonna go through
the planning stages and, of course, we still have to touch bases with the
communities at Makawao and Paia to determine how it's going to go through the
town at that point. But in terms of the bike tour companies it is a concern to our,
of us because they do use Baldwin Avenue quite heavily. There, there's also the
issue about whether there should be turnout lanes along Baldwin Avenue.
Currently, there are none and my understanding is that the bike tour companies
pretty much stop on the side of the road where, where there's room available.
The right-of-way along Baldwin Avenue varies but ... space is rather limited,
however, if you're looking at the, like a preliminary cost to establish turnout lanes
just a rough cost would be perhaps something in the neighborhood of like
$50,000. This would be the cost to establish a turnout area, uh, to pave it. This
is without any drainage improvements and without any land acquisition. So it
kind of depends. This is like the bare bones kind of turnout areas that ... you
know, .could be done if the committee decides that's the route that they want to
go. So, anyway that's just the general overview from, I guess, from our
standpoint on the issue of fees.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any questions for Mr.
Arakawa? Mr. Kawano followed by Mr. Nishiki, excuse me, Mr. Arakawa and
then Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you, Chairman, and good morning. Good
morning, Milton. What about traffic, Milton, the, I know it's always been a
problem but lately as far as that goes on that? Did you guys have more
complaint about the bike as far as traffic and ... ?
MR. ARAKAWA: We do receive occasional complaints. Although, the bike tour
companies ... they have stopped on the side of the road if there is traffic backing
up after their van leaves. They've stopped on the side and allowed the traffic to
go through but we, we do receive occasional complaints about that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: And what about accident?
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MR. ARAKAWA: Um ... I am not familiar with the accident data,
so I'd have to go look
it up.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: So, if no word that means good
word, good sign then
as far as that goes?
MR. ARAKAWA: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: I said if you don't have any comp
laints about accident
and stuff like that, so it looks like it's flowing pretty good then.
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, I'd say it would flow a lot freer if the bike tour
companies weren't
there, I mean it does slow up traffic to some extent. Although
they have, they
have been good in trying to allow the, the motorists to pass,
but I mean it
certainly slows up traffic.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Kawano. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Chairman. In trying
to understand where
you're going with this particular item, I'm looking at the bill. Basic
ally, you're
looking at changing this from the ordinance to allowing this dollar
amount to be
here set in the budget ordinance.
CHAIR MOLINA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I think that's a good idea. It's
something we've been
doing consistently and as soon as you're ready for that motion,
I will make that
motion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: As far as the Department I'm kind
of surprised at this
point with what Milton is saying. Over six years ago, the Depar
tment came out
with a comprehensive plan to redo Baldwin Avenue and
I do mean a
comprehensive plan, all the turnoffs, all the side improvements.
They actually
went through that entire avenue and set aside all the areas where
they're gonna
have problems with, that was presented to a Council committee.
And what
Milton is saying right now is there's no turnoff, there's none of
this stuff even
though it was presented to us back then. Last year, when I was
driving in that
area I noticed that somebody, and I assume it's the County, went
through and
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dug up all the sides of the road making it virtually impossible for the tour
companies, the bicycle tour companies to pull off on the side. If that was, if it's
considered a hazard, I'd like to know why that was done? Because it would
cause an extreme hazard and extreme concern within the community if they're
slowing up traffic, if we dig up the side of the road so you can't pull off on the
side. And I believe that was done by our County. So, I'd like to know why that
was done? If the County could so choose to do that, then it's apparent to me
somebody in their greater wisdom felt that there was no problem and that we
didn't need to have the bicycle tours pull off on the side and I don't believe that's
the case. Now, when I had this in committee and we were discussing it -- this is
one of the topics that I, I worked on as Chair of one of the committees -- we
came out to some agreements and the County was supposed to go and do the
maintenance on the roadway, reo .. repave the roadway. They were supposed to
put the, the turnoffs in the plan, it was supposed to be budgeted for, and that
comprehensive plan was supposed to be worked on and that's been over six
years ago. I'd like to know from the Department where those plans are and what
has been done since that time to be able to work on this program?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As far as the turnout areas on Baldwin
Avenue there are no existing turnouts.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: There are no existing turnouts.
MR. ARAKAWA: But as far as the digging up of Baldwin Avenue that you're referring to
I'm not certain what that would be. I can find out and get back to the committee.
The plans that were talked about a number of years ago are the part of the
environmental assessment and approval process that we're just starting to go
through right now. So, we're formal. . .formalizing the approval of the, the project
to go forward at this point. As you know, with any environmental assessment
process, there's a public review period that we must go through and we still have
to go through and obtain comments from the Paia and Makawao communities as
well as other people who maybe have an interest in the project. So, our intent is
to move forward and we still have to go through the public review process in
order to do so.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Council member Arakawa, if I can intervene at this point.
I think you bring, you've brought up some good issues, but I would like to have
that maybe referred as a separate item to the committee to where we can have a
more full-blown discussion on it.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well ...
CHAIR MOLINA: Today, I'd like to just focus on the actual fees as far as what this
committee feels should we raise it or not.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, it is very relevant to what the fees should be
because of, of how we're going to have a nexus drawn as to how we establish
the fees, you know, you have to establish a reason for establishing a fee. Now,
there, there are minimal fees, you know, that that was done with every
department or every, you know, bills. I'm perfectly willing to look at those. But
when we start talking about if we're slowing down traffic and if we're doing all of
this other kind of stuff as brought, as brought up by the Department then I think
we need to be very fair about how we're discussing this entire area of discussion
and I'd just assume leave that aside. So, if we're going to agree right now we're
not gonna discuss any of that that's fine. If we're just gonna discuss the fees, I'd
be willing at this point to set a range of fees. I'd be looking anywhere from the
minimum that we've looked at is $60 I'd be willing to go up to 200, $250 right
now.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, the Chair will take that into consideration. Thank-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And as far as taking this and doing what you want to
do with moving this budget ordinance, I think that's something that we've been
doing pretty much automatically, I'd be willing to support that right now.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Milton, do you have an idea of Baldwin
Avenue ten years ago in regards to vehicles traveling that road compared to now
and what you see in development happening Upcountry and the amount of
volume of cars that are now driving? And let's say from -- I don't know when do
people start work -- say from 7:30 to 9 with people driving to work and kids going
to school. Do you know what kind of impact it has on Baldwin Avenue including
school buses?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, I don't have that, the figures right now but as part of the
environmental assessment that we're gonna be doing there will be a traffic
analysis. So, normally when you do the traffic analysis you would look at, you
know, the existing traffic counts and, you know, the projected counts over time.
So, we expect we're gonna need a --
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And you would, you would also have contacted the
bicycle tours to find out how many tours are now operating compared to when
ten years ago and, and see the type of scheduling that they have down Baldwin
Avenue also. So, you would also include that in your impact -MR. ARAKAWA: Yes. We should -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- as far as traffic?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. The reason why I raised this, Mr. Chairman, is
that we're looking at the bicycle tour business and, and, and a fee. But I think
more important is to look at the usage of Baldwin Avenue by whom, the times in
which these tours travel. Because you intend indeed on perhaps increasing the
fee whether Baldwin Avenue as being planned by Public Works is going to create
a safe route. And finally, if it isn't then perhaps include in the discussion if you're
going to raise fees, perhaps the times in which we may want to see or not see
bicycle tours operate. 'Cause I think that if we are going to allow it and because
of this raised fees, because of this as Milton said widen the road, and because of
this created bike path, I, I, I think that whole scenario would also entail perhaps
not allowing bicycle tours. Because I think we're going to see an increase in the
numbers not operate from certain times of the day perhaps from 7 to 9 because
that's when the kids are going to school and that's when we have the most traffic
because people are traveling this roadway. And I think in that analysis you
should perhaps bring in the Police Department because I think we've had a
couple of deaths and who knows how many more accidents that I don't think
Milton would be the one that would track the incidents.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So that is what I ask you to do prior to having any
discussion. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank, thank you for bringing that up, Mr. Nishiki, we do have
someone from the Police Department that will be coming up.
have
Councilmember Tavares with a ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I thought it was Mr. Kawano.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, I'm sorry. No.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Kawano first?
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, you're finished. Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, we have Councilmember Tavares followed by Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah thank you. Mr. Molina, thank you very much.
You know, I would love to get into a discussion about the bicycle tours-VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- except but that's not what's on our agenda today.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: On the agenda today is this bill, which is more like a
housekeeping thing if we recall from Budget, to move all of the fees and
references to fees to the Budget itself and not in the ordinance. And if you
already said that you're willing to have a topic on the bicycle tours and then we
can get ali' the people here and rehash what was rehashed before or was hashed
before 'cause now we're gonna rehash. But if we could get this one out of the
way and get into the next topic, which does have a bearing on the bicycle tours
also, that we can really get into some in-depth discussions about the bicycle
tours. 'Cause I think if people knew we were just talking about the tours, there
would be a whole lot more people here. But it, it's just the ordinance that we're
trying to amend to move any reference to fees to the budget ordinance and not in
the, the rest of the County Code. So, you know, that, that's the topic today and,
and, you know, I'd like to see us focus on that topic and, and move on. Thank
you.
CHAIR MOLINA:
Mr. Carroll.

And the Chair agrees with your thoughts there, Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. No, I was just going to pretty much
say the same thing that Councilmember Tavares just brought up.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Your recommendation, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR MOUNA: Okay, my recommendation, at this point, the Chair is, well during the
budget session I proposed a fee increase from $15 to $45, however, I am flexible
as to what this body would consider. We had one suggestion made by
Mr. Arakawa to raise it to something as high as $200. Now, Members, we, the
Chair, before I continue earlier I said because we didn't have any testifiers right
at the start of the meeting the Chair would close testimony at 9: 15. We did have
someone come in, a group of individuals come in at about 9:10. We have one
member of the community who wants to testify on this particular item and two
more members of the community who would like to testify on /terns No. 47. Now,
the Chair personally would like to hear from these people since they did come in
before the 9:15 cut off time. One, the member who would like to testify on
Item 40, excuse me, Item 51 ... 56 is here to testify. Are there any objections on
this? Or what I'd like to do first maybe we can complete discussion on the matter
and if there are no objections, I would like to allow this person to testify.
Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair, I have no objections, however, I would like to make just
one short comment prior to having that person come forward.
CHAIR MOUNA: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you. I think what you have written to us in the August 14th
memo is that we will have a discussion regarding the fees which is already in a
exist. .. existing budget docket to what the fees will be the next time around. So,
I don't think we're looking at a discussion today on the actual dollar amounts for
the fees, that will be taken cared of with Mr. Hokama in the Budget Committee
when we take up that. As far as moving this forward, like Member Tavares and
Member Carroll has echoed, this is just pretty much making that amendment,
taking out the reference of the $15 because it's already in the budget docket and
then we can have that discussion annually it seems like because that is gonna be
a fee schedule that we, we've discussed annually. So, I just wanted to say that
and I appreciate Ms. Tavares for bringing us back to what we have on the
agenda.
CHAIR MOUNA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Otherwise, we would have had all the bikers here. If we were
going to talk about the actual fee change today, it would have been in a different
committee. Thank you.
CHAIR MOUNA: Okay, thank you. Members, any other--
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COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: I have no objection, Mr. Chairman, to let him testify.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Again, the Chair is flexible, at this point, we can go ahead and
just pass this proposed amendment to the ordinance without setting a parameter
as far as the actual fee that we would want and maybe decide that during the
budget session. And, of course, we have the Budget Chair with us and,
Mr. Hokama, your comments.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
would prefer you send to Budget Committee a
recommendation on the fee.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. A number to work with?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Or range ... from x to x.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Okay. Alrighty [sic]. Members, any discussion on that?
Personally, I would like to see at least a working number, a number that we can
work with going to the Budget Chair and from there we can decide how much we
want to establish this fee. I would like to stand by my initial proposal at $45 from
15 to 45 but there are some Members who feel that this fee should be increased
to a higher amount. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Along that line, I would like to just
recommend that we put the fee between 15 and $250 and send it to Budget.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Okay, the suggestion made right now from Mr. Carroll to set
the fee between 15 and $200. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 250.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: 250.
CHAIR MOLINA: 250, excuse me. Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And just a final comment. Were you anticipating sending a
recommendation because you make no reference to having a recommended
amount being forwarded to the Budget and Finance Committee? And if we're
going to just look at what's existing and then the high end, it seems like that's
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gonna be in the discussion anyway at the Budget Committee when
this item is
taken up. So, because you never referenced any type of dollar
amount being
forwarded I would ask that we just do basically what is on the
agenda, and
amending the ordinance to remove the dollar amount and sendin
g forward, and
clarify that the fees to be set forth in the Budget ordinance. Can we
just, after the
testifier has had the opportunity to speak, we just move
with your
recommendation, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Yeah, it is the Chair's intent today is just
basically to have a
discussion on the bill itself and if, you know, Members wante
d to bring up a
specific fee price on this we could entertain that also. And I, I
was just making
my, I guess, refreshing everyone's memor. . .memory as far
as what I had
proposed during the budget session. We had Mr. Arakawa to
be followed by
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, that that's why
originally when we
started looking at this I have no problem with making the motion
as soon as, I
guess, we have more tes ... somebody who wants to testify, putting
this to the
Budget ordinance. The actual amount, you know, we're done with
budget, so the
actual amount right now I don't want to really debate that becau
se yeah, when
we were talking about it that's why I said, asking about the nexus
. We have to
actually go in and figure out why we're gonna be doing this and
that takes a lot
more involvement and discussion. So, just doing what Dain has
said what's on
the agenda right now I can do that very quickly.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alright. Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And, Mr. Chair, final note. I would agree
with Mr. Arakawa. I
mean, after hearing the tes ... the statements by our Deputy Direct
or from Public
Works, we would need to find out exactly what we're gonna be
looking at as far
as the fees that are directly linked to the bike tour operators and
what kind of
accommodations they're gonna need to provide a safer roadway.
And once we
get those figures, I think and that's something that between now
and when we go
into Budget to have that discussion then we can link the two togeth
er. What the
fees are and how those fees are going to be applied to the impro
vements that
were, that we may be considering at the budget, you know, budge
t period. So I, I
agree with Mr. Arakawa we-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. In other words, this will help us-VICE-CHAIR KANE: -- a dollar amount is premature at this point,
I mean, if we say as
an example --
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CHAIR MOLINA: Establish a clearer guideline.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: -- if we say $15, well what is that gonna do, where is that money
going, how is it gonna be applied if we don't have an actual plan? We're talking
about a bare bone 50,000 but that doesn't include this, this, that and the other
thing. I mean how, how can we make a decision on what a fee is and how it's
going to be applied when we don't even know the whole, the whole picture of the
improvement for this area. So Just moving it forward as a ref... you know, what,
what you have on the agenda: and then having that discussion later when it's
appropriate.
I

I

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Okay. Mr. Ni~hiki fa II owed by Mr. Hokama.
I

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, 1,11, I, I see everybody wants to be long-winded but
I think we ought to just cut it shqrt. This probably should have never been sent to
this committee and been sent t9 the Budget Committee. So, unless there's more
discussion I would ask that you rake that recommendation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, initialIy it was ~iscussed in, during the budget sessions and the
recommendation was to, as to ~ake this process cleaner, to have the discussion
held in the Public Works Comm ttee and then have it referred back to Budget to
determine the fee. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairrhan, thank you. And I glad you brought up that
point because that is the reasorl why we have the standing committees. During
Budget and budget review we m6y not and more than likely will not have the type
of time that some members may want to go and get the type of information they
feel they need prior to making \ a decision. I am assuming that the standing
committees will be doing tHeir job to make recommendations to the
Budget Committee for consideration ... and if it needs a whole days meeting for
iron it out in the specific standing committee to make the recommend [sic] so be
it. But I don't see it happening in, in Budget during budget review, not when
we're working on the total bu~get. And so, I think that's the part of the
responsibility of each standing 9ommittee. And if you want to leave it alI up to
Budget then refer everything to Budget.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you,
on the matter?

~r. Hokama.

Any other queslions or discussion

VICE-CHAIR KANE: No, we don't want to be long-winded.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: ... (Laughter) ...
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Like some people.
CHAIR MOLINA: At this point, the Chair will entertain a motion to recommend the
passage of the proposed -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chair, are you gonna do testimony?
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, excuse me, we do have one testifier. Thank you for reminding
me. Okay. To testify on Item 56 we have Madelyn D'Enbeau and let me go over
the rules befqre you proceed to testify, Ms. D'Enbeau. Testimony shall be limited
to three minutes, an additional minute to conclude the testimony may be granted
subject to the discretion of the Chair. If your testimony is not completed you will
be given an additional three minutes after all others have been heard. Testifiers
are required, are requested to state their name for the record and to indicate who
they're representing. And to minimize any disturbances during this meeting
please turn off all pagers and cellular phones or set them to the silent mode. And
at this point, the Chair will officially close off testimony for any of our items today.
Okay, proceed, Ms. D'Enbeau .
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

MS. D'ENBEAU: Thank you. My name is Madelyn D'Enbeau and I'm speaking today
as a business owner up in Makawao. First of all, I would like to echo what
Councilmember Hokama said, I think that this, probably there are a lot of
questions that need to be answered about what the actual cost of the bike tours
to the community is. And I'll remind the Council Members and those that weren't
here at the time that when Alice Lee was Chair of this Committee there was a
proposal to put a $2 per bike rider fee, which according to the statistics from back
. in that time which I believe was '97, there were 200 bikers a day going down
Baldwin Avenue. So that would have a $400 a day fee for the County and that
was shelved. I believe, there was very serious opposition by the bike operator
community. But that type of thing, I think, perhaps is still on the table when
you're talking about what kind of fees would be appropriate. And then secondly,
I'd like to alert the Public Works Department and the Council so that we can
avoid the kind of thing that happened in Paia. I'm getting calls all the time.
There's a great deal of concern among the merchants in Makawao because
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Public Works is out making some kind of survey marks that indicate at least to
the merchants that the parking on Baldwin Avenue might be eliminated in favor of
the bike path. And I don't think I have to.say much more for you to imagine what
that would engender. So, perhaps Public Works can make a presentation to the
Makawao community and alleviate their fears but that's out there and I certainly
hope that we can do a better job than the DOT did in that kind of area. But I
would certainly as a business owner support deferring this matter and getting
more information to try to make sure that the bike tours in fact do pay their fair
share of the disruptions that are created by their activities. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any questions for Ms. D'Enbeau? Hearing none.
Thank you very much .
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

CHAIR MOLINA:
Okay, Members, at this point, the Chair will make his
recommendation if there are no other concerns being expressed. I, at this point I
would consider a motion to recommend a passage of the proposed bill with or
without revisions and then defer the matter since there are concerns about
getting more information from the Public Works Department and the
Police Department. If anyone would like to make a motion to entertain -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa followed by Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, I would like to move to approve the bill that is in
our binders. Basically, bringing the application -- well, I'd like to move to approve
the bill in the binder.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
It's been moved by Mr. Arakawa and seconded by
Member Tavares. Okay. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. Basically what, what you're doing in here is
taking the ordinance, you're removing the application fee amount from the
ordinance and having that done in the budget ordinance.

- 15-

PUBLIC WORK S AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE
Council of the Count y of Maui

August 15,2001

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So that is what the, the purpo
se and I believe that's
something that we should do.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and, and in the intere
st of the Members I'll
try not to be long-winded. I, I will be supporting this and as you
stated earlier,
Mr. Chair, you are looking at taking up another item that we can
get into this full
discussion and that I can support. And once we get through that
full discussion
we can have a final recommendation once we have all the inform
ation forwarded
to the Budget Committee, so when we're in Budget we don't have
to deal with all
of that, all of that discussion. So, I was listening and that's how
I came to my
conclusion of how I'm willing to, looking at voting today. So,
I just wanted to
make that clear. I heard what you said and based on that I made
my statements
and I hope everybody else was listening because it sounds like
some of 'em
weren't and they, they took it as that I was implying that we have
the discussion
in Budget and that's not the case at all. You said earlier, we're
gonna have that
discussion in another meeting here in the Public Works, the stand
ing committee
and I agree with that but it's not posted on the agenda today to start
talking about
all of these other things. And quite frankly, the point of order was
coming and I'm
glad Ms. Tavares came in and did it in a better way so.
Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Kane. And the Chair apolo
gizes for maybe not
reemphasizing the point as to why we're here today but I appreciate
the efforts of
the members to sort of bring us back to center field instead of
left field or right
field. Okay is there any other discussion on the motion? Member
Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, for clarification.
Now, we're gonna
pass, the motion is to act on the bill that's attached to the communicat
ion but the
communication will stay in, in this committee under that item so
we can have a
full on discussion about the bicycle tours and fees?
CHAIR MOLINA: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Arakawa.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No, I just wanted to clarify. I did not make a motion to
file the communication -CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: -- just on the bill itself because I assumed from the
discussion that we were going to have further discussion on it when we, we ...
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, we, we will have more discussion on this item-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- in a, at a future meeting and then we'll from there, we'll then refer it
to the Budget Committee once a decision is made when we get all the
information that's pertinent. Okay. Seeing no discussion. All those in favor of
the motion -VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair. Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So that we . . . just to make it clear before you call for the
question. Can this committee then, Mr. Chair, can you send a letter down to
Public Works and ask them to put together a proposal as far as what they're
planning on doing to make the necessary improvements on Baldwin Avenue? So
that when we do come back and we can have the discussion on the fees, we can
relate it directly to what information is being brought forward. So, if we can have
a letter requesting that information from our Public Works Department.
CHAIR MOLINA: So noted. That, that request will be made. Thank you, Mr. Kane.
Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: After we have the vote before we defer the rest of the
items then I'm gonna ask some questions ...
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: . . . of Public Works to make sure that they're
preparing with the questions I want.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alrighty [sic]. All those in favor of the motion say aye.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed. Okay, let the record show the motion has passed
unanimously. Thank you, Members.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Hokama, Kawano and
Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

PROPOSED BILL FOR FIRST READING

CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa, you had a comment.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Chairman. This topic has been discussed in
quite some length in Committees of the Council and I'd like to make sure that
when we're discussing this Public Works doesn't go back and bring all that
information forward. The other thing too, is when we're looking at this one of the
key question was nexus. So, I'd ask the Public Works to make sure that they're
prepared to answer how they're gonna establish a nexus for the fee. Okay.
Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Also, I see on the first communication that's in this
item that there's a copy of a Committee Report 01-78. Could we ask that that
Committee Report be included in the, in this item if it pertains to the bicycle
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tours? Right now, the, it says that it's on file with the Committee Secretary so,
and I'm sorry I didn't take a look at that committee report but if it's germane to the
issue, I would like to see the Committee Report attached or included in this item.
CHAIR MOUNA: Okay, we will include that. Any comments, Jan?
MS. INOUYE-OGATA: Mr. Chair, excuse me, for clarification.
Budget and Finance Committee Report 01-78?

You're referring to

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is that what it is? It doesn't say that it's Budget
Committee Report. It just says Committee Report 01-78. If that is the Budget
Committee Report then we don't need that one. I thought it was the Committee
Report from the, from previous that was specific to the bicycle tours.
MS. INOUYE-OGATA: Yeah it's the Budget Committee Report ... Budget-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, that refers the item to this committee.
MS. INOUYE-OGATA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, never mind. I withdraw my request, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Alrighty [sic].
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I would like to make another request, however, if they
would look up, if the staff would pull the Committee Report when this subject was
discussed in whatever committee it was. I think it might have been in Parks at
one time.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: It was actually, it was discussed in Parks, and it was
discussed in Public Works. It's been discussed at least twice.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. If, if staff would research and pull the
Committee Reports from whatever committee had this topic in discussion, so that
we can have more information about what happened in the past.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, we'll do the Committee Reports and the minutes as suggested.
Okay, I believe this issue was brought up several years ago I believe,
Mr. Arakawa, you were on the Council at the time and ...
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: This actually was brought up at least for two different
committees of the Council we've had discussions on this. That's why it's very
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critical for me to just go back and review what was there so you can understand
why it's where it's at right now.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much. Any other requests or discussions?
Alrighty [sic]. Thank you very much, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Defer.
CHAIR MOLINA: Pardon me.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Defer.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes the, the bill, the bill has been passed and we'll be deferring the
matter. Do you have any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: No objections.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No objections.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Okay, before we proceed with our next agenda
item we have two members of the public who would like to testify. The first
person to testify on Item No. PWT-47, I'd like to call up to the podium Mr. Robert
Watanabe.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, can I have a 30 second recess? Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Short recess. .., (gavel) ...
RECESS:

9:40 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:41 a.m.

ITEM NO. 47: RE: PROPOSED BILL AMENDING CHAPTER 10.76, MAUl COUNTY
CODE, PERTAINING TO PARKING LOTS AND PIERS (C.C. NO. 01-212)
CHAIR MOLINA: Public Works Committee meeting of August 15th is now back in
session. The Chair would like to call again back up to the podium to testify on
Item No. PWT-47 is Mr. Robert Watanabe .
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...
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MR. WATANABE: Mr. Chair, Committee Members, my name is Bob Watanabe. I'm the
President for the Maui County Veterans Council and also the President for former
Marines here on MauL What we're trying to get passed is this bill I guess about
the Veterans Cemetery. The reason why we're asking for this bill to be passed is
because of the bicycle riders coming down that hill. There's been a lot of times
that they block the way for services and the hearse and people having a hard
time getting into the cemetery parking lot. And while we're having services there,
they're also inconsiderate, they're loud, and every now and then somebody has
to go out there and tell them to please hold it down or leave the premises. They
also trash the bathrooms there like they don't care about it. So, what we did at
the Council is bring this proposal up through Dennis and he brought it into you
guys here to have it passed. Appreciate all the help you can give the Veterans.
Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA:
Watanabe?

Thank you, Mr. Watanabe.

Members, any questions for Mr.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Watanabe.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, we have one question.
Tavares, proceed.

Mr. Watanabe.

Councilmember

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Watanabe, thank you for being here. The
other thing that I noticed yearly is the, the Fourth of July rodeo parade uses this
area to, you know, set up or, or get started. Do you see this, I mean, this, this
will impact them if, if we pass this but have you hg:ld any problems or do you have
any solution to how an organization like that the Fourth of July rodeo parade
would be able to continue to use the area if this is passed?
MR. WATANABE: Yes, I talked about that with one of my constituents here and the
subject was brought up about that rodeo thing. It's not much of a problem with
them gathering there and just leaving that area, plus they don't trash the parking
lot or anything like the bicycle riders do. So, I don't see any problem in the
Fourth of July rodeo being assembled there and they leaving the area plus it's
only a one-year thing once a year thing.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
MR. WATANABE: It's not like the bicycle tours coming down there every day and doing
that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you very much.
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MR. WATANABE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER
ARAKAWA:
Yes,
Mr.
Watanabe,
listening
to
Councilwoman Tavares's question the way the ordinance is written, it prohibits
any . . . let me, let me just read it to you. No person shall conduct any
commercial business activity within the parking lot located at Makawao Veterans
Cemetery except for those activities necessary for cemetery operations. This
doesn't allow for an individual to say, hey, it's okay for the parade people to do it
and it's not okay for somebody else to do it. The ordinance is generic to
everybody; I think that's what the concern is. In your discussions, you know,
when we try to enforce this law, essentially if we pass this right now my
understanding of it is it would be everybody including the parade, the way it's
written. So, I want to make sure that you understand that's what we're, we're
discussing today. Is that clear? We cannot make the exception. You may want
to make the exception but the law does not make that exception.
MR. WATANABE: But isn't that, the parade thing it's not a commercial thing it's more
like just ...
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: It's for cemetery operations.
MR. WATANABE: Well, could we do something about that and write it in the bill and
pass it so if we have to get rid of the parade thing and they have to assemble
somewhere else, well we're gonna have to do that because like you said,
Mr. Arakawa, we cannot discriminate against them or the bicycle riders.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well ...
MR. WATANABE: But we want people out of there, period.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Again, we will have that discussion but I'm just
pointing out to you -MR. WATANABE: Okay. That's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: -- as I'm reading this rule as it was written, you don't
make any exception for it in the rule. So, we'll have some discussion on that.
Just make sure you're aware of that.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members -- Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, thank you. Mr. Watanabe, how, approximately
what time do these people come and gather there and, and how often during the
day?
MR. WATANABE: Well, I don't have a precise time on that-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. WATANABE: -- but whenever we hold services up there, it's during the weekend
or during the week, and usually we catch them there in the morning ... coming
down parking there, unloading, loading. So, what we see, what I've seen so far
is that we've been catching them in the mornings.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
MR. WATANABE: I don't know what they do there in the afternoon when there's no
services for the Veterans or they might still come down there and park, that I
don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So they actually load bikes -MR. WATANABE: And unload.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- and get the people on the bikes at this point or aren't,
aren't they coming down and then -MR. WATANABE: Some of 'em are but some of 'em bring their van there-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. WATANABE: -- on the rack, whatever, and they unload the bicycle there too.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay ... and then put on passengers there.
MR. WATANABE: Putthem on the bicycle and continue going down the hill.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, what, what other activity is also done there? Do
they feed them there or give' em water or anything else?
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MR. WATANABE: I haven't seen that but they might be doing it. I really don't know,
Mr. Nishiki, but the thing is -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, and then they use your bathroom.
MR. WATANABE: Right. The thing is they're blocking the way and especially when
we're having the services there for a dead veteran -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. WATANABE: -- they're noisy, no consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You've not, you've not seen anybody that actually comes
there at that point, parks his or her car there and then grabs a bike and rides
down.
MR. WATANABE: No, they come with the van with the company. It's not an individual
thing. It's a group thing that we worried about.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Members, any other questions for
Mr. Watanabe? Okay. Hearing none. Thank you very much, Mr. Watanabe, for
your time.
MR. WATANABE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, we have our last testifier for today on Item
No. PWT-47. We have Mr. Rogelio Evangelista.
MR. EVANGELISTA: Mr. Chairman, Members of the Council, my name is Rogelio
Evangelista. I'm a ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... I'm with the State Office of Veteran
Services, I'm the Advisory Board Chairman and I'm also past Department
Commander of the Disabled American Veterans. I also sit on the Maui County
Council. I'm here today in regards to the Maui Veterans Cemetery, testifying for
the bill to be passed and I, I, I speak for myself, for the Veterans families, and for
the Veterans that are there. They themselves cannot speak and I understand
that a cemetery is supposed to be a solemn area and like Mr. Watanabe iterated
that there are bicycle riders coming there and I myself have seen it happen. That
they come there, some of the bikes that as they come down it's, I guess, not safe
so they unload bikes to put the other people back on different bikes. And it, it
comes to a point where the ... the ceremony that's happening at that time gets
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interrupted because as the bikers go down there they're so loud and obnoxious.
They use the restrooms like Mr. Watanabe mentioned and we feel that it's a
solemn resting place for all our Veterans in itself, so it should be kept that way.
Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you-MR. EVANGELISTA: And also, I think we have three Veterans here also, Mr. Kawano,
Mr. Nishiki, and yourself, Mr. Chairman, that we hope feel the same way we do.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Evangelista. Members, questions? Okay, we have
Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, do you know if the property where the parking lots
are, are private or public?
MR. EVANGELISTA: That is part of the Makawao Veterans Cemetery.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And the Veterans Cemetery is owned by?
MR. EVANGELISTA: The Veterans Cemetery is owned by the County-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: County owned.
MR. EVANGELISTA: -- although, it has a State ... tax key. Basically, the State got
that for the cemetery after they did all the improvements and so forth they deed it
over to the County. So, it's a County cemetery.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: They deed it, it's a County cemetery.
MR. EVANGELISTA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: County lot.
MR. EVANGELISTA: Okay. Thank you.
Members, any other questions for
CHAIR MOLINA:
Thank you, Mr. Nishiki.
Mr. Evangelista? Hearing none. Thank you for your time, Mr. Evangelista.
MR. EVANGELISTA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, we shall proceed with Item No. 47, which relates to
a proposed bill amending Chapter 10.76 of the Maui County Code pertaining to
parking lots and piers. The purpose of the proposed bill is to prohibit commercial
or business activity from taking place at the Makawao Veterans Cemetery
parking lot and to establish a penalty. Now, personnel in attendance to comment
on this issue, again we have Mr. Milton Arakawa, the Deputy Director of Public
Works and Waste Management; Denny Schwind, the Executive Assistant
representing the Managing Director's office and I would like to ask Mr. Schwind if
you'd like to come up and take a seat. And we also have again for informational
purposes, we have Mr. Watanabe from the Maui Veterans Council in case any
members would like to ask any other questions; and from the Maui Police
Department, we have Lieutenant Hirata to comment on this. The Committee
again is in receipt of a communication from the Director of Public Works and
Waste Management, which transmits a proposed bill entitled, again "A Bill for an
Ordinance Amending Chapter 10.76, Maui County Code pertaining to parking
lots and piers." Mr. Arakawa, I'd like to ask you for your comments now at this
time on this issue.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This is a request that was brought forward
by the Veterans Council and Mr. Schwind is the one who is most familiar with the
request. So, I'll just defer to Mr. Schwind if you don't mind.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Mr. Schwind.
MR. SCHWIND: Thank you. As the testifiers alluded to, earlier this year the Veterans
Council asked me as the Mayor's Liaison to request that this bill be drafted
because of abuses at the parking lot, at the . . . abuses of the parking lot at the
Makawao Cemetery. Beyond disrupting funeral services, there's also problems
within the parking lot overnight by abuse of individuals using the parking lot for
other activities, leaving litter. But focusing on this particular ordinance, the
request was submitted to the Public Works Director's office and during the
course of several meetings with Corporation Counsel we ended up with the draft
form that you folks have today. We are not trying to prohibit the Fourth of July
parade organization from using the parking lot. My understanding based on the
wording of this ordinance that that is not a commercial endeavor, that it's a
non-profit organization and under cerkain [sic] certain circumstances other than
funeral activities would be permitted based on the current wording of this
ordinance. Again, J think that the, the Veterans have many concerns regarding
disrupting the funeral processions and the funeral services taking place and most
of that disruption is by the downhill tour companies. I've had the opportunity to
visit that particular facility on two separate occasions, both of which I took
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photographs in the parking lot and I believe you have copies of those, if not
copies can be made available to you. Two separate occasions, two different
morning hours and on both visits and I only was up there for a period of
approximately half hour to 45 minutes, there were downhill tour companies using
that parking lot. One, of which that they were leaving as I got there but I did take
a snap shot of the van leaving. The second occurrence was they were actually
loading bikes into their van and bikers into their passenger van and that particular
day the weather was fairly inclement and that I think that maybe they decided
rather than to continue riding their bikes down through Paia that they were
loading the vans at that point in time. So, that's the, the little bit of history on the
request for this ordinance.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Schwind. Before I proceed with questioning,
questions from the Members, I would like to alert you to the fact that the
document that Mr. Schwind is talking about has been ... the title is inaccurate.
Okay, it should read, "A Bill for an Ordinance amending Chapter 10.76, Maui
County Code pertaining to parking lot and piers", and not fees for bike tour
operations that you see the two photos that are attached. Okay, our first
question -- Mr. Fukushima, you'd like to comment?
MR. FUKUSHIMA: Yes, Mr. Chairman. The intent behind this particular bill was to
prohibit commercial and business activities. When I was sitting here reviewing
the bill it appeared to me that perhaps there was some, some confusion and the
addition of ... business and commercial, those words between those activities, I
believe, would make the, would lend clarity to the bill. So it would need, so it
would read, no person shall conduct any commercial or business activity within
the parking lot located at Makawao Veterans Cemetery except for those business
and commercial activities necessary for, for cemetery operations. And I believe
that would lend a little more clarity as to what the intent behind this particular
legislation is.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Fukushima. Okay, we had Member Tavares
with her hand up first to be followed by Mr. Carroll and then Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, I wanted to ask Mr. Schwind what is the
relationship between the Makawao Cemetery and the Veterans Cemetery?
Because that parking lot is between the two and I think the Makawao Cemetery
is private.
MR. SCHWIND: The Makawao Veterans Cemetery, excuse me, the, the Makawao
Cemetery is a private cemetery. They share a parking area, pretty much the
access lane into the parking lot and the paved area belongs to the Makawao
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Veterans Cemetery. There's a grass area between the approach road and the
gates going into the Makawao Cemetery and that's for the private secretary [sic],
private cemetery.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So is that, if, if, where's the property line in that, in that
area?
MR. SCHWIND: I'm not sure.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You, you know, is it in the middle of that parking area?
MR. SCHWIND: I'm, I'm not sure, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 'Cause, Mr. Chair, you know, it would, pertaining to
this parking lot, I think that part of the problem about this parking lot and I've
heard complaints about activities going on in the wee hours that are not
supposed to be allowed here, drinking in that lot and I think we have an
ordinance that says there's no drinking in County parking lots, if I'm correct. But I
think part of the problem too is also that it's very difficult -- not very difficult -- it's
so wide open that it looks like a free-for-all area. And I, I would think that
hopefully the Administration will come down in their budget proposal next year to
make some improvements to that parking lot area, so that it is more clearly
delineated that this is a parking lot for the Veterans Cemetery. And maybe
because it's a shared situation with the, the private cemetery that some
arrangement can be worked out where the Makawao Cemetery and the County
of Maui can participate in beautifying the parking area and maybe just causing it
to look more like an entrance to, to the cemetery. I mean, right now it's just pull
off the side of the road around that bend and it's like you can go anywhere on
there. So maybe, you know, part of that we should do that to, to help the
situation as far as, I mean, we can, we can handle it with this we can take care of
those problems but then the other problems I don't think we're, are still gonna be
there.
CHAIR MOLINA: I share your sentiments 'cause for, for years it's been a place where
youngsters and oldsters have congregated just to have a few liquid refreshments
and not realizing that it is a place, a somber place where respect should be
shown. Okay, we have Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I would like to propose an addition
to the wording after "cemetery operations" it would say, "or veteran related
activities." This would allow like the Fourth of July parade which the Veterans
are involved with or if the Veterans do have other activities they could have it
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over there but it would give them the option of using that as a staging area
because they are involved with it and it would be a veteran activity.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, the Chair will consider that request. Okay, thank you. We
have Mr. Hokama to be followed by Mr. Nishiki then Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Fukushima, the $100 is, is, is there a
reason why it's not more than $1 OO?I mean what if this committee would like to
say not less than $100?
MR. FUKUSHIMA: That's fine. This figure was just put in. This is a draft, draft of a bill
and any, any amendments would be ... could be included.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I was just wondering if you could share with us this
morning because I'm sure the fine or penalty should somewhat equate to the
level of the violation. And so, if your number was because it was viewed in a, as
maybe as a violation instead of a misdemeanor or a ...
MR. FUKUSHIMA: I believe, I was looking at some of the other violations for, for
parking in ... in other County parking lots.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, but if this committee chose to go the opposite
way and set a minimum instead of a maximum, that would be within our
reasonable parameters?
MR. FUKUSHIMA: Certainly ... certainly ... certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Molina.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Nishiki followed by Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Howard, are there any County parking lots that
allow any type of commercial or business activity?
MR. FUKUSHIMA: I believe we allow vendors in our parking lots. I'm not aware of
other commercial uses in our parking lots.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, because this is allowed and we're just addressing the
Veterans Cemetery parking lot, we won't have any problems?
MR. FUKUSHIMA: I don't believe so.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Milton, in our parking lots do we have right now
any signage in regards to alcohol or ... any type of signage at all? All our
parking lots in regards to drinking or, or, or, or, or, I think this may be the first for
commercial activity.
MR. ARAKAWA: I, I'm, I'm not sure specifically. I'm sorry, I'd have to check.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I guess, Mr. Chairman, I, I, I would hope just because if
we're going to levee as suggested by Riki something that says, "not less than"
and I, I, I believe that that amount will deter people. But I would hope that also
this County would post signs if this does pass which spells out the violation. Not
only for conducting business but also for drinking in this parking lot. That way I
think that would truly be a deterrent. Lastly, if there are things right now
happening in this parking lot, Milton, is it possible for us to in some way create
any type of ... gate or chain or anything like this?
MR. ARAKAWA: We could come forward with some sort of a proposal as far as
inclusion in, I guess, next year's budget regarding parking lot improvements. The
actual design I guess would be something that we could look at whether it be a
chain or gate, I guess, paving of the lot, and how many stalls, and all those
details could be handled in the actual design of the project.
MR. SCHWIND: If I may, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Schwind, you'd like to comment, respond to Mr. Nishiki's
request?
MR. SCHWIND: If I may? Earlier this year we discussed that option with the Public
Works Director and part of the problem is that Maui Land & Pine has a
right-of-way through that parking lot to use for, I guess, pineapple plants behind
the Makawao Veterans Cemetery. In addition to that, because of the Makawao
Cemetery co-sharing that same parking lot it became a very difficult process of
trying to figure out where a guardrail would go, where a gate would go. So, we
did look at that that option and eliminated it based on the types of other usage
required by existing right-of-ways for as again, Maui Land & Pine and again the
fact that Makawao Cemetery and the Veterans share a common parking area.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Howard, if someone were to say to us, I'm in the private
part of the parking lot, therefore you can't ... tag me to a Police Officer, unless
we know the metes and bounds, how, you know, I mean, to spend all this time
creating this ordinance and, and not having it identified could create problems
when the Prosecutor gets this and then is having to deal with it. I don't know if
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Sergeant Hirata would like to but I think that you would probably have that
knowledge and -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Lieutenant.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mis ... Mr. Nishiki, we do have Lieutenant Hirata in the gallery -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- and we'" have him respond or give his comments on the cemetery
issue a little bit later but if you would like to hear from Mr. Fukushima first.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I think Mr. Fukushima would probably be ...
MR. FUKUSHIMA: If I may, Mr. Chairman? The burden would be on the Prosecutor to
show that in fact they were in an area where parking was, where that particular
use or activity was prohibited and it may be difficult, you're right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and then perhaps these commercial people
may go to the private owner and offer 'em big sums of money, so that's probably
out of our jurisdiction also right, Howard, if they were to do that?
MR. FUKUSHIMA: We", regulation on, we" I don't believe that we're, we're trying to
regulate what happens on private property. If that's what the Makawao
Cemetery operator wants to do and it's consistent with the particular uses
permitted, permitted uses in zoning, no problem.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, we need you to speak into the mike. We can't hear you.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: Excuse me.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Fukushima, can you repeat your response so ...
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No, I -CHAIR MOLINA: Did you hear it okay, Mr. Kane? Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Just needs to speak into the mike.

- 31 -

PUBLIC WORKS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

August 15, 2001

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Next, we have Mr. Arakawa to be followed by
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, I've got a lot of different thoughts about this
one. I can understand the intent but I've worked enough of these bills so that I've
got a lot of questions on this. First of all, when you're saying you're going to
prohibit commercial activity, how are you defining commercial activity? Now,
when we had the discussion as to commercial activity there actually has to be a
transaction of money per someone who transacted that business away from this
property and is just happening to be there, that may not be considered a
commercial activity. So, would the bike tours actually be considered, under the
law the way we have it for the enforcement part, how are you gonna prove
commercial activity? Corp. Counsel.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Fukushima.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: Well, I would believe that if the, if the bike tours are utilizing the
parking lot that they would be in violation of this. I believe that it, it would be -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, any, anybody-MR. FUKUSHIMA: In this particular circumstance, yes. I believe the other, the other
circumstance you're relating to, relating to the exchange of money relates to,
number one, State of Hawaii rules regarding the uses of beach areas. It also
relates to, I believe, the restrictions placed on the use under the Banyan tree in
Lahaina but I don't believe that's the law, Councilman, and, and I would stand
corrected if it is but I don't believe it is.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, if I may continue?
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I'm, I'm going to ask you to go back and check that
because we had a lot of discussion on this with the commercial activities at
Naska and whether the windsurfers or all the different parks, where we had dive
groups, we had a lot of different type of beach activity. Commercial groups were
allowed to go through our park system even though they're a commercial entity it
was not considered a commercial transaction. Parking on the roadway with the
tour groups, is the road considered part of the park? Is a, is a business activity
prohibited from using our roads to load and off load? Can, you know, there,
there are a lot of legal questions, I believe, that need to be resolved. I don't think
you can just say commercial activity and expect to get the results that you're
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going to get. So, I'd like you, I'd really like you to research that because we had
a lot of in-depth discussion on this when we were discussing businesses in the
parks and I believe this is a park so we have, I have that concern. And as far as
gating the cemetery, if you put a gate on the cemetery and let's say I want to go
to the cemetery and put flowers on, on one of the areas, who's gonna open the
gate, how are you gonna have access? You know, I have a brother-in-law that's
buried there and my wife and I, we go up, our family goes up and visits that
cemetery. We don't report to anybody and say, hey, you know, we need you to
open the gate so we can park in the parking lot so we can visit the cemetery, that
may be something that we have to consider.
CHAIR MOLINA: That's a good, you know, that's something that can be worked out
with whomever, whatever Department that will be handling that, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well ...
CHAIR MOLINA: And your last comment.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Again, when, when you start, when we start working
with this we cannot discriminate against, against anyone type of entity. So, if the
ruling is going to be that no business commer... no, you're going to look at
business as anybody who has a business or is transacting a business cannot use
this facility, you're gonna have to prove that that is occurring and it has to be, of
course, uniformly across the field. You cannot discriminate against just one type
of business and I have a concern when we start doing this. And I'd like to ask
Lieutenant Hirata to come down as to whether the Police Department will actually
be able to use this ordinance in doing and enforcing it as they want to. Now, we
can, we can have him come down and explain it to us what, what to do-CHAIR MOLINA: I will do that in just a moment.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, just ...
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa, are you finished? I have Mr. Hokama waiting to give
his thoughts and then I will call Lieutenant Hirata down here to respond to any
questions the Members may have.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I have some other, I have some other areas, but I will
let him go and come back and ask.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, the Chair appreciates that. Mr. Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chair. One thing that maybe would have
helped was if we had ... could have had this in context of the whole chapter,
because there is language and I, I, I would assume that Public Works is looking
at a Veterans Cemetery as part of a County owned cemetery. Or what is the
other word we use, owner-operated parking lots? So, we already have
10.76.065, which is County parking lots, commercial activities prohibited. Okay,
we have that in the language of the code already but it's very specific about
motor vehicles. We may need to change the language in that portion whereby as
it talks to commercial and business and what it means as well as the use for
storage, holding, or parking that that might also be able to be strengthen so that it
can be inclusive of the concerns that is being raised this morning, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: As far as the neighboring . . . use of the private
cemetery, I'd ask the staff to check on the zoning and community plan current
designation. That by itself may already be prohibiting that kind of commercial
activities unless Council is going to grant a special use or conditional use permit
and, and hopefully we will be aware of ... of impacts if it can be related to this
specific Makawao Veterans Cemetery. So, I just share those things. My thought
that maybe we also because I think it's within what you've already posted,
Chairman, that we can be able to look at the whole Chapter and that there may
be some revisions that we may want to ask Corporation Counsel. So, that the
whole Chapter is tied in together and makes sense instead of we having
conflicting types of definitions on what a commercial activity is and then on a
technicality something be defeated in a judicial setting, that our intent is totally
conflicting and thereby we're gonna get back to this very situation again and
hash it out and make adjustments. So, I would ask for you to consider that in
whatever we develop as the final proposal.
CHAIR MOLINA: Well, definitely, the Chair will definitely consider that, I think it's
important we define all the language that's proposed in any ordinance and I think
the underlying cause for this bill to, that's being proposed is, is the noise and the
distraction. And I too have bore witness to the compo ..the bike tour companies
coming down and some leaders displaying some insensitivity to where they're at.
I have my mother and father that's buried in the Makawao Cemetery there, so
needless to say it was not a pleasant experience when seeing one of my parents
buried there and hearing a lot of noise while the services was going on. But
again, Mr. Arakawa also has a good point about we have to be careful about
discriminating and just picking on one entity orga ... organization. Mr. Nishiki, I'm
gonna ask you to hold off on your question just fora m()ment. I want to call
Mr. Hirata to give a, excuse me, Lieutenant Hirata to give his comments on
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things that go on in the cemetery and if possibly there's been any complaints
from the community regarding any commercial activity that occur in there.
LIEUTENANT HIRATA: Good morning, Mr. Chair, and Members of the County Council.
To my knowledge, I have not received any complaints but the situation up at
Makawao regarding the parking lot would nor...the complaints would normally
not come to my Traffic Section. It would be basically to Patrol and -CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Mis... Lieutenant Hirata, can I interrupt. Excuse me,
Members, can you please give, give your attention to Lieutenant Hirata. There's
a lot of side noise going on and the Chair would really appreciate hearing
Lieutenant Hirata's thoughts. Thank you. I'm sorry, Lieutenant Hirata, proceed
again.
LIEUTENANT HIRATA: With regards to the problem with, of enforcing for the Police at
that location, I would suggest that maybe Public Works do a little survey and set
up some landmarks so that we can delineate the, the County property from
private property and that way the officers will have a good indication of, if the
violations are occurring on public property. We also suggest that you possibly
look into a curfew for that parking lot, that might be also a good idea. This will
enable officers to approach vehicles and then to determine if they're there for no
legitimate purpose and can ask them to leave, that should take care of some of
the nighttime problems. With regards to the, the enforce, enforcing of, of this
statute it would just require a few questions of the persons involved, the operator
and the participants. Did you pay to go on this ride and is this a commercial
venture? That should satisfy the requirements for prosecution or, or taking some
type of enforcement action.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Lieutenant. Lieutenant, before I ask members for their
questions. At this point, have you had a lot of complaints from the community
regarding the commercial activity that occurs in there through your department?
LIEUTENANT HIRATA: As far as I know for my section we have not although, I am, I
am aware having patrolled the Makawao area as a patrol officer, I am aware of
the litter problem -- bottles, cans, litter, being left up there due to nighttime users.
And when we've approached people, you know, some people gather there to,
you know, participate in those liquid libations as you have previously mentioned
and we normally we ask them to leave. However, signage I think would be a
definite requirement if we, we need to let these people know what the rules are
and if they step over the line then we can be allowed to take some type of
enforcement action but that that would be my recommendation.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Lieutenant Hirata. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, thank you. This is important. If it's a vehicle,
Howard or Lieutenant Hirata, as pointed out here in the picture taken by the
County staff and there is unloading and loading of bikes, that's one situation. If it
is merely bikes that have to pull off the side to use for safety reasons whether it's
used as turnoff and they move the bikes off and, and who knows someone may
need to relieve himself or herself, so they know there's a bathroom there so they
go there and use it. My, I, I have some legitimate concerns such as, you know,
just as Alan has if we're using it right now for that reason, are we going to then
police that? Obviously, you're going to have to hear from someone calling you to
go there and address that concern at that point, Officer Hirata, but that is, that is
my concern. And, Howard, what if that happens? I mean someone's using it for
safety reason, you know, someone in that line of bikes has got to use the
bathroom and relieve himself or herself, so they pull off because that's how they
travel in that way, in that manner. What happens then? Is this covered in here
where a biker will be ticketed or the company will be ticketed for that pull off? I
pose it to both you and the Officer just because that is probably what is
occurring. I was talking to one operator here and he says that he knows that of
only one company that actually may use that -- then, you know, maybe too who
knows how many -- for that purpose of pulling a van in and showing what you
have here, you know, in the back you've got a . . . some kind of storage van
behind it. But they have circumstances where people are just going there to
relieve themselves and making noise and throwing rubbish, I mean, how will we
look at this? Are we going to go ticket them and is, is that what we're trying to
achieve?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Fukushima, your response?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Go ahead.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: If I may, Mr. Chairman? I'm not sure if that was the intent behind
this. I thought the intent was that there were bike companies that were using the
Makawao State ... Veterans Cemetery parking lot as a staging area and they
were regularly using that as a, as an area to, in essence, conduct some
commercial type of activity.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: Now, if it's, if it's a bike tour and someone pulls out of the bike tour
and goes and uses the restroom, I don't think that's what the law is intended to
prevent. If it is, then perhaps we, we need to ... relook at the language if that's
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what, if that, if that's what the intent is to prevent that type of activity also. I don't
know. But the, the intent when this was first submitted was to attempt to prevent
commercial activities taking place in the parking lot, not to prevent people from
using the bathroom.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, and, and, and, I guess, Howard, would that type of
action that I just described of a group of bikers coming down, stopping there to
use the restroom or, you know, attend to somebody, would that be a violation of
this law? Because I think that what they have also addressed is that, these
people may be just doing what I just described and it is disrupting the ceremonies
and taking up parking. So maybe it doesn't really address what the entire
concern is and we may need to look at other types of alternatives, Mr. Chairman,
because the law itself may not address everything that we're trying to concern
ou rselves with ...
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: ... and, and it may be also working with the bike
industry. I don't know if we've, you've actually gone and talked to the people
there asking them, and telling them what the problem is, and it may be just that
type of meetings that need to occur also, Mr. Chairman. That we need to meet
and discuss this because I, I, I don't feel that the bike people are doing it on
purpose now. Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Well, the bike tour companies did have, give, have an opportunity to
testify on this also just, just for the record. Well, this talk of restrooms seems to
have triggered something in the Chair, so at this moment we shall proceed with
our questioning after we take a short ten-minute break.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you .... (gavel) ...
RECESS:

10:25 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:35 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: Public Works and Transportation meeting for August 15th is now back
in session. The Chair would like to continue the line of questioning for our
resource personnel that are present here today on Item No. 47. We have next in
line for questioning we have Mr. Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to know maybe
from either Mister, Lieutenant Hirata or Mr. Arakawa from Public Works. Maybe
as part of the permit review that they gonna pay the County some dollar amount,
that they, that the applicant also be required to provide some kind of a routing
and safety plan and how they would address certain situations ... and if that
make sense. You know, to take some of the concerns that Mr. Nishiki brought
up, yeah that the, the guy needs to get off the road and, and maybe it just needs
to be part of the, the consideration is require them to provide a routing and, and
safety plan before they get approval of, of permit or an annual review permit.
MR. ARAKAWA: Currently it's not required but it sounds like that could be a good idea
to explore. We would certainly want to know, you know, the extent to which our
County facilities are being used, so we would certainly look into that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Lieutenant, would that help as far as you think with the
traffic of both the bike and vehicles coming down that route? And then maybe,
you know, I mean, I'm sure maybe like they would ask your division or you for
your comments and you can say, well this is not a good sight it's around the
bend, there's some blind spots, the view, the view lines are not sufficient enough
that would be a partial hazard or those kind of things.
LIEUTENANT HIRATA: Well, I don't think I have the resources or the personnel at this
time or, or even in the future to, to do a report as, as you stated. Basically, my
job would be to enforce, do the enforcement of any rules with regards to the
safety of vehicles operating on the roadway.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
considered a vehicle?

A licensed bike coming down a County road is

LIEUTENANT HIRATA: Yeah, bicycles are vehicles and normally what would happen is
whenever a permit thing is going through the, the Police Department for it to be
addressed, it's assigned to the community police officers who have had training
in studying impacts of transportation issues in their community. And I believe
the, the officer for that area is Officer Chris Dixon. She's intimately aware of
these problems regarding the interaction of bicycles and vehicles in the
Makawao/Upcountry area.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Well, Chairman, my, my reason of
bringing it up is we deal with enough claims and lawsuits because we didn't do
our job in the review process and, you know, how everybody's area easily goes
into litigation. If we going to redo this then let's do it as best as we can and try
and accomplish as best we can to address as many concerns as possible.
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LIEUTENANT HIRATA: I don't, I don't have any records for collisions occurring in a
National Park. I mean they have a tendency to keep a very good record of that
but I do have records for the bicycle accidents that happen on State and County
property and I can tell you this that almost all of 'em involved unescorted bicycle
tours.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. We have a response to your line of
questioning, Mr. Hokama, from Mr. Arakawa of Public Works.
MR. ARAKAWA: Just perhaps, Councilman Hokama, maybe the app ... appropriate
venue to obtain that information on the routing and safety plan would be as part
of that Baldwin Avenue environmental assessment for the bikeway that we are
going to do. Then we can look at it in a more systematic and thorough manner
as far as how we're going to address, you know, not only bike tours but bicyclist
in general.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And since the Lieutenant, Chairman, mentioned maybe
he doesn't have the resources to review if we make it a requirement, a routing
and safety plan, then maybe the County's Traffic Safety Advisory Committee
might be considered as a possible group of people that can review this kind of
things and make comments back prior to approval of the permit.
CHAIR MOLINA: That will be, that will definitely be considered, Mr. Hokama. Thank
you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, we have next Mr. Kawano.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Mr. Chairman, really I look at that bill and I think it
address the Veteran people who, who wanted to see the bill pass that's no
commercial activity and I'm ready, I'm ready to vote.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Kawano. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Again, I will bring up to this committee, I would like to
include that wording inside there after operations, "or veteran related activities."
This gives the Veterans and the people over there some flexibility, for instance,
Fourth of July parade, it gives them some say over it because that is an activity
that Fourth of July parade, I mean, hello Veterans are usually very involved in the
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Fourth of July. I know I am. So, I'd really like to see that wording put in there if
there's no objections with the Members.
CHAIR MOLINA: We could consider that, Mr. Carroll. Members, any other questions?
Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I'm going to point out a couple
things. One thing that I'd would like to point out is that when we had discussions
about bike tours in past committees, this area that we're talking about trying to
prohibit the downhill bike tours was one of the areas that was recommended by
Public Works Committee as a natural turnout area. So, the fact that the bike tour
operators are pulling out over here was because in part that this is one of the
areas that was considered a regular turnout area. They were encouraged to do
so because it gets them off the roadway, it allows other cars from, to, to pass
them. If you prohibit them and they cannot get off the roadway in the speed that
they're going in, the other cars cannot get, they, the bike tours cannot get off the
roadway, other cars going through will have to follow them for longer distances.
Okay, so that's something to consider. While we are ... alleviating one concern
sort of and I don't think it will be very effective anyway even if we pass this law,
we may be creating another concern whereby we're gonna slow traffic down for a
much longer place. Because if you go in this particular area the turnoff areas for
quite some time are not there and this is right below the town. So, they're sort of
regrouping and allowing everybody to pass through the town area. So that's,
that's something that we need to consider as well.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: The other concern that -- and Lieutenant Hirata
brought this up -- is a lot of the tours are unescorted, so you would not be
prohibiting the unescorted tours or groups from using this place. And one of the
things that we were dealing with escorted tours and with the general group, if we
force the situation where it's ownerless there is nothing that prohibits the
escorted tour groups from saying okay then we'll just do unescorted tours, which
would create an even more hazardous situation. So, we have to be very
cognizant of the fact that when we try and over regulate one industry, we may be
creating a larger problem if that industry does what other people in the industry
are doing which is going unescorted then these regulations will not cover what
we want it to do it will create a worse scenario. So, I'll caution that because this
was part of the discussion we had in earlier meetings on regulating the bike tour
groups. Okay. We cannot, we cannot tell the tour groups they have to have
escort. There are only 12 that are escorted. And when we had discussed it with
these groups to try to work with them -- now there are only four or five members
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of that escorted groups that really wanted to sit down at the table -- the others felt
that all they have to do was change the road they're on, change direction, do all
kinds of different things. Now, they were asked to go on Makawao Avenue ...
the tour groups originally they were, not going down Omapio Road, so the history
of this thing has, because other communities have asked them to move they've
gone, they're now on Makawao Avenue. They could very well just shift and go to
other areas, which would cause an even greater impact and discomfort to other
areas. And if they all decided to go to different roads instead of just one, you
could have, you know, several areas being affected. I just wanted to put that out
there as part of the thought process the -CHAIR MOLINA: That's important, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: -- yeah, the restrictions that we're trying to put in.
Now, I've never liked the idea of very, of, of trying to discriminate against one
specific type of business. And I think it's very obvious that that's what we're
trying to do even though we're trying to make it broad enough to include all other
businesses. In the, in the wording of the law and how we're going to be dealing
with this, I want to be very clear that once we start putting in, when we start
restricting on parks and this is a general restriction on a park, there is no reason
why this can't be included in all parks. And these types of restrictions need to be
considered universally for all businesses in all parks. At some point that
discussion will come out as to whether we're discriminating or not. So, I'm not
clear that we are not putting ourselves in a position where we can get sued
because we're trying to discriminate in one area and that's a concern of mine.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa, on all the valid concerns. Just a
comment on the issue of tour companies that that do the escorted tours. I, I for
one, don't think they would change their plans as far as suddenly having their
tours, at least the majority of them would change that because visitors I believe
who come here for the bike, bike tours would prefer to have an escort especially
when you're coming down a mountain. So, for many visitors they would feel
more assured if they would have an escort on these tours but those are my
comments on that. (CHANGE TAPE) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Hokama was next.
CHAIR MOLINA: Riki ... okay, Mr. Hokama to be followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
Thank you, Chairman, and I would think the
unes .. .those, those firms that do unescorted either must have a break on their
liability insurance premiums or willing to take that additional liability risk for their
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business. But I had asked Mr. Boteilho of our staff to verify certain things and my
understanding of what the current Veterans Cemetery and the surrounding lands
are either interim or agricultural and any type of commercial business that we've
been talking about today is not a permitted use. And so, while I can understand
some of the concerns shared by Mr. Arakawa, I don't agree. I think the overall
land use designation has already determined what is permitted and not permitted
activities and commercial is not permitted. So, automatically you would have a
zoning violation. Unless a Council could be supportive to grant a conditional use
permit, I, I don't see it being difficult to prohibit commercial activities ... it's part
of the use of the land. So that's, that's just my, my thoughts, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I was going to suggest that a word be inserted or some
words be inserted to clear up this business about whether it's a commercial, true
commercial or not and that that would be to insert after "any", "no person shall
conductany activity related to a commercial or business operation." So, it would
read like that. So there would be no question of if it's related to a commercial
operation it's commercial.
CHAIR MOLINA: Could you repeat that again?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: No person shall conduct ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So it would be in, in the way it's written there between
"any" and "commercial" insert the words, "activity related to a" and then after
"business" strike the word "activity" and replace it with "operation" or some other
word because activity -- activity would sound a little word [sic] weird.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Staff, did you get that? Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, the other, the other comment I have to
make is I think that when Public Works looks at the, the bikeway plan as he was
describing to us, that in this particular area it makes sense to use part of it as a
turnout area for those bike tours because they're coming right out of Makawao
town at that point and if it is appropriate that can be delineated. I think what's
part of the problem there is that it's just so all wide open that everything can go
on in there. And if that's gonna be a designated turnout that somehow you have
either a low fence or something that indicates where that turnout is and that it
becomes like a wider shoulder rather than oh, you just turnout into this parking lot
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and that's fine. 'Cause then that gives people the idea that oh, you know, you
could do anything you want in this place. But I think working with Public Works in
their road design with the Veterans even with the Makawao Cemetery people to
come up with some kind of agreement that might mean changing that entryway
where there's a little triangle sort of, it's sort of dirt right now I think, yeah. I see
Denny nodding his head. But there's a little triangle thing that kind of says
where, where Kee Road comes out and then where the one entry is into the
parking lot, I mean, it's not really clearly defined I guess. But through I think the
work that Milton's doing on this plan and with the Veterans and the Makawao
Cemetery people we probably could get a good workable routing there. And I
think signage is important, I mean you gotta figure some of these guys, you
know, they're on holiday and they're getting off and they get ah, da, da, da, you
know. And, you know, some people I mean I, when I'm a tourist I'm kind of like
oblivious to what's going on around me but if I see a sign or something that, you
know, oh yeah this is a Veteran's cemetery we should be respectful or whatever.
I think that's the whole thing is, is you get caught up in your own -- and remember
they're coming down from little oxygen so maybe the brains aren't working quite
right yet.
CHAIR MOLINA: Awareness.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, so maybe, you know, signage would help but I
think yeah, like I go back to delineating where these areas are would be, would
be helpful.
CHAIR MOLINA: Maybe establishing a shorter boundary 'cause as it is right now it
encourages members of the bike tour industry to come in to the parking lot -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- and rather, maybe just establish a-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah a turnout-CHAI R MOll NA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- or a pull, pull out or whatever they call those. If they
know they can do that and can do it safely there then, you know, they'll use it for
that purpose rather than the free-for-all that it looks like now.
CHAIR MOLINA: And that is something I hope Mr. Arakawa of Public Works will
definitely take into consideration that could solve part of the problem. Okay.
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Members, any other questions at this point before the Chair makes his
recommendation? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, can we go back to Mr. Carroll's request.
Mr. Carroll do you have some language and where it would be inserted?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: The language would be inserted after "operations" it
would read, "cemetery operations, or veteran related activities."
CHAIR MOLINA: That would be in letter A?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Cemetery operations ...
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Or veteran related activities.
CHAIR MOLINA: ... or veteran related activities. Okay. Anything further, Mr. Carroll?
That's it. Mr. Fukushima, is that clear with you at this point?
MR. FUKUSHIMA: Could I, I read what I have right now?
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As I understand it the bill as, as with the
proposed amendments would read, no person shall conduct any activity related
to commercial or business -CHAIR MOLINA: Operations.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: -- enterprises within the parking lot located at Veterans at Makawao
Veterans Cemetery except for those activities, except for those business and
commercial activities necessary for cemetery operations or veteran related
activities.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: That clear, Members?
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alrighty [sic]. Any other questions? Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Again just for the record, I want to make sure that
Corp. Counsel is advising us that this will not conflict any of the existing rules as
far as business activities and how it's defined and treated.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: I don't believe so.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Fukushima. Okay, before the Chair gives his
recommendation I'm going to call for a short two-minute recess. . .. (gavel) ...
RECESS:

10:53 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:57 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: Public Works and Transportation meeting for August 15th is now back
in session. Members, the Chair want to add to letter A, a suggestion that was
made earlier by Mr. Hokama with defining or eliminating the word "more" and
adding in the words "less than". So letter B would read, any person who violates
this section shall be subject to a fine of not less than $100. Okay, so is
everybody clear? So, we're eliminating the word "more" and adding in the words
"less than", is that clear to all the Members?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, and for clarification purpose I would like to ask Mr. Fukushima
to again read the amended bill in its entirety, letters A and B.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: Okay ...
CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse, excuse me, Mr. Fukushima. Sorry, can I, can you hold up for
just a second. Mr. Arakawa.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, what you just did essentially, you're changing
the entire fine structure by saying not less than $100. You are opening it up to
an unlimited amount that the fine can be. Is that your intent?
CHAIR MOLINA: That was the -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Not more than $100 means you cannot be fined more
than $100, not less than $100 means $100 ... $10 million.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, well let me go to the person who suggested it. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's right. If you, you know, you get caught for
second violation and they want to fine you more for than a hundred I think the
Department should. You get violation, a third violation fine 'em more.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, I, the intent is to leave it as to be current-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The intent is to be so that it becomes a part of the
prohibition of violating this section.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Okay, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I'd like to have Corp. Counsel's opinion on wording a
law in that way. 'Cause everything that I've seen to this point sort of says less
than or not more than and by doing it this way are we now, is that
recommendable by Corp. Counsel?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Fukushima.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: I, I don't see anything wrong with it. Again, I have to remind you
that the fine will be decided by the court. This is a criminal violation.
Additionally, there is by operation of law a limit on fines that the County can
impose and I believe that's a thousand or $2,000. So there is by operation of law
an upper limit.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Up until this point I was willing to support this bill but if
it's going to be not less than $100 I will not support this bill.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any other discussion?
Okay, hearing none. The Chair will entertain a motion to recommend the
passage of the proposed bill as amended and the filing of the communication.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: So moved.
CHAIR MOLINA:
Discussion?

It's been moved by Mr. Carroll, seconded by Mr. Kawano.

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Discussion?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, I'd like to ask for the Chair's explanation for more
than $100 or yeah for not less than $100, the nexus for that, and justification for
that?
CHAIR MOLINA: Well again I, I agree with Mr. Hokama it will serve as a deterrent for
future criminal activity taking place there or any violations that may occur. It, I
believe it will help and that's -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Using, using that logic, however, every bill that we
have that has a fine on it we should do the same thing -CHAIR MOLINA: I have discussed this-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: -- and I don't agree with that.
CHAIR MOLINA: I have discussed it with the Corporation Counsel and the, there is a
possibility that we'll make this uniform throughout the section regarding parking
violations and other infractions that could occur. Any other questions or
discussion on that matter? Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I'm, I'm supporting the bill and
with the, with the amendments in there. On Section B, the amendment to not
less than $100 I think we've heard through various other items that were
discussed that had fines on it, that the courts are limited to when we say not
more than a hundred they can't do anything else. So, if there is, you know, a
grievous infraction or whatever going on, the court is going to be limited by what
the, is, what the law is that we approve or that we legislate. So I think in this
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case and we should be looking at more of putting in not less, you know, not less
than putting a minimum. Because sometimes, you know, we heard the case,
somebody got fined $5 for -- God, I can't remember what it was -- but it sounded
like something serious at the time maybe a dog that bit somebody or something
but the court, you know, well it says up to a hundred so they did $5. So I mean
this, this is what I think where we need to look at in the future. I think that
because of the location where this is a Veteran's cemetery I think that's an
extenuating circumstance where we should be putting in stricter controls. This is
not like out in the middle of nowhere where there's nobody around then maybe,
you know, I wouldn't agree to this but because it's specific to the Veterans
Cemetery, you know, I, I fully support this. We need to show that kind of concern
and respect for what that property represents and to me it is serious. I mean I
know we don't dictate morals but this is one way we can dictate behavior that's
accepted and not accepted. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: And the Chair would like to add too, it does give the courts a little bit
more flexibility with regards to fining any people who do break the law.
Supposedly if somebody committed a real heinous act rather than just, you know,
littering the place then it gives the courts the flexibility to go above the $100 fee
that's been established here, so the Chair is supportive of that. Any other
questions or discussion? Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Again, I'm going to just say this for the last, for one
last time. If, if we were looking at what the maximum allowed by the State is and
put not less than that for whatever the other laws is, I could understand that but
putting an open ended fine on this. You know, I can just see somebody going in
there and getting a minor violation and getting whacked with a fine that that could
be very high and substantial and we would again be preventing the court from
doing a fine of less than a hundred dollars. So, I'm very leery of an open ended
fine system and I will not support the open ended fine system. The rest of the bill
I believe I don't have any problem with, but the open ended fine system I do.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: As Ms. Tavares has said just for clarification it is not
open ended it ends at a $1000 by law.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Any other discussion? Hearing none.
The Chair will call for the vote. All those in favor of the motion say aye.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, let the record show we have one opposed. Thank you very
much, Members.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Hokama, Kawano and Tavares,
and Chair Molina.

NOES:

Councilmember Arakawa.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Vice-Chair Kane

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

PROPOSED BILL FOR FIRST READING, as revised, and
FILING of communication

ITEM NO. 66: RE: PROPOSED RESOLUTION ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF
ROAD WIDENING (ALONG LlPO PLACE AND WAIEHU BEACH ROAD/UKALI
STREET. WAILUKU BEACH LOTS SUBDIVISION) (C.C. NO. 01-213)
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, our next item is Item No. 66, which relates .to a
proposed resolution accepting dedication of a road widening lot along Upo Place,
Waiehu Beach Road, and Ukali Street. The purpose of the proposed resolution
is to accept the dedication of roadway Lots C and D, in conjunction with the
Wailuku Beach Lots Subdivision. And at this time, the Chair would like to ask
Mr. Arakawa of Public Works to give his input on this item.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This matter concerns accepting dedication
of a road widening lot. It pertains to two smaller lots in relation to the Door of
Faith church right in Waiehu, which is a fairly new structure. Excuse me. The
road widening lot along Upo Place is along the existing parking lot, which the
church has and that's approximately 2 feet wide. And the road widening lot along
Waiehu Beach Road is basically a corner rounding at the intersection of Waiehu
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Beach Road and Ukali Street and the area of the road widening lot is 123 square
feet.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Questions?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Your recommendation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, the Chair's recommendation at this point is to adopt the
proposed resolution and the filing of the County communication.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: It's been moved by Member Tavares and seconded by Mr. Carroll.
Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Kawano. Kawano.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, excuse me, the Chair would like to change the second to
Mr. Kawano. My apologies. Any discussion? All those in favor say aye.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed. Okay, thank you. The Chair marks it unanimous.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Hokama, Kawano and
Tavares, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Vice-Chair Kane
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MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPTION of resolution and FILING of communication

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chair. Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members -- Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Just generally on the street that we're working on.
Previously, you know, we, we were told these are just automatic we have to
accept these. I would like to see that we look at a rule whereby either we're just
going to accept 'em so we don't have to go through each one if we automatically
have to accept them.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, for, for your information, Mr. Arakawa, the, the Chair is
currently working or has worked with the staff to submit a proposal to the State
Legislature about possibly changing this so we don't have to address these items
here on the Council floor since we have no choice or no say. So, I agree with
you there.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair. Mr. Chair, I don't think we have to go to the
State Legislature to do that. I mean we could do it ourselves here.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: I know ... I was told that we need to consult with State, with the State
Legislature on this.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I mean we, we have to accept them. It's where we
accept them that is the question I think, you know, just like the donations to the
County, other donations of Whatever, you know, in our Charter it says we have to
accept all donations. So, you know, that the formality of accepting it is I think the
question. It's in our purview. It would be nice if the State changed their thing but
in the meantime I think we can address it more expeditiously if the Council would
come up with a process for accepting these roadway lots as required by law.
You know, but I think that might be something that would be quicker for us and
then we can wait for the State to, to do their thing.
CHAIR MOLINA: We could, we could look into that too, initially.

- 51 -

PUBLIC WORKS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

August 15, 2001

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: But I, I believe when talking with staff the, the issue was dealing with
the State too.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: But if there's a way to expedite this and maybe we don't have to even
deal with, you know, with this on, on the committee level, that could help expedite
things a lot faster. Thank you.
ITEM NO. 67: RE: PROPOSED RESOLUTION ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF
ROAD WIDENING LOT (ALONG PULEHU ROAD/BUCHANAN-LOMONGO
SUBDIVISION (C.C. NO. 01-214)

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, moving on to Item No. 67 relates to a proposed
resolution accepting dedication of a road widening lot along Pulehu Road.
Purpose of the proposed resolution is to accept the dedication of roadway
Lots 3 and 4, in conjunction with the Buchanan-Lomongo Subdivision. And
again, I ask for the input of Mr. Arakawa of Public Works.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The Buchanan-Lomongo Subdivision is
located close to the intersection of Pulehu Road and Holopuni Road up in the
Kula district. There are two lots that are being proposed for dedication. Lot 3 is
approximately a 4-foot wide, road widening lot and Lot 4 is basically a remnant
lot, which is required for the road widening lot and that that remnant is about
144 square feet. Lot 3, sorry, Lot 3 is 1,350 square feet.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. And it may be very mean ... meaningless
for, for, for some but I'm just curious, you know, when we have this ... say I
guess part of the Warranty Deed that's attached to the resolution. You know,
some sums of, of the people that we -- well, you know, we have $1 for this one,
the last one was $10, some we have $100 -- isn't there some way we can just
standardize? Everybody pays whatever is fair or is this, I mean, is there any
rationale why there's all this different amounts?
MR. FUKUSHIMA: Well, not really. There are, they are nominal amounts.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, I understand that the intention is to be nominal.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: '" (INAUDIBLE) ... nominal amounts -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes, I understand that.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: -- and, and no I think there is no rhyme or reason it just depends on
the person who drafted it whether it's $10, $1 or very rarely I've seen $100. It's
usually 1 or $10.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
But there must be some sort of financial
renumeration [sic] in exchange, that's requirement. What if the person says, I
don't even need one dollar. I don't need anything, I do this because I need, it's a
requirement. So, the County doesn't even need to pay me one, one cent.

a

CHAIR MOLINA: Symbolic gesture.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Or is this, or is there a requirement that there must be
at least one cents or $1 transaction?
MR. FUKUSHIMA: Well, well there's evidence of consideration, which is, which is
required for -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Okay, well thank you then.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any other questions or discussion
on this item?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. I would use this item as, as sort of ... little bit
of a broader view but specifically to this item. We had discussed perhaps the
department coming to us and discussing the item before requiring it for approval,
before making it pretty much an extraction from the, whoever the landowner is
making it a requirement for them to, to, to dedicate it to us. In this particular
case, when we're, when we're looking at the dedication we get this, we now have
to maintain this roadway. In looking at the way this property is configured, Milton,
is this a good configuration for us to have to maintain since it's going to be our
roadway? You know, it's obvious the department has looked at it but when I'm
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looking at it, looks like a kind of a weird little narrow strip. What's it going to cost
us to maintain this in the future versus, you know, when we're accepting this?
What, what's our payback? And in theory, it's always been well, the property
owner is gonna be paying property tax or road tax but, you know, we've never
qualified this and we got, now we're getting a long stretch of road which we're
gonna have to maintain. The cost of which theoretically is being paid back by the
couple of houses that are in there. What is our, what is our long-term cost versus
our or what we're receiving ... benefits?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa, from Public Works would you like to comment on that?
Or what we could, Mr.· Arakawa from Councilmember Arakawa, we could
consider that question posed -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I'd like a separate topic on it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah that that could be posed to the Budget Director to get their
input.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Where ... the, the laws require us to accept the lot.
These types of considerations when we talk...talked about it earlier -- I'm asking
it because it's, I have to be specific to the lot but it really should be discussed in a
generic form. So, what I'd like to do is I'd like to ask you to put the issue ...
CHAIR MOLINA: As a separate agenda item.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: ... into, as a separate entity into committee so we
can discuss that. The particulars of one lot doesn't mean anything but we do
need to look at how we're accepting lots. We're making a requirement to accept
the lots and then to pay for the maintenance and, and the upkeep of this roadway
in the long run becomes a burden of all taxpayers. Okay. So, what I wanted to
do is I wantto look at when the Department makes it a requirement at that point
there should be some decision as to whether it's economically feasible or not to
make it a requirement and that topic is what I'd like to talk about.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. I'm sorry. Proceed, Milton.
MR.

ARAKAWA:
Mr. Chairman,
don't
Council member Arakawa is requesting ...

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Not necessary.
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MR. ARAKAWA: ... but I do know, you know, we are already, the County is already
maintaining that segment of Pulehu Road and the existing right-of-way is I
believe 40 feet. So, you know, if we're adding 4 feet more the additional cost
would be minimal. I mean I don't know exactly what it would be but it's fairly
nominal and minimal that, a nominal amount that we're talking about.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MR. ARAKAWA: If, if the committee wants to refer it as a separate matter we simply
could but, and I can get more exact figures but it is, it is a pretty minimal amount,
you know, just -- I can give you an intuitive answer to that right now.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And again, Mr. Chair-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: -- this, this, this particular lot the numbers don't mean
anything. It's the, the concept that that I want to discuss and I can only discuss
that because in specific to the lot because of the way it's posted. But accepting
this one it's, it's a given we have to accept it, so the topic is what I'd like to
discuss not the, the specifics about any particular lot.
CHAIR MOLINA: That is something that this committee could take up at a later date
under consideration, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Members, any other questions on this item? Okay,
hearing none. The Chair's recommendation is for the adoption of the proposed
resolution and the filing of the communication.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: It's been moved by -- let's see -- we'll give it to Mr. Hokama,
seconded by Member Tavares. Any discussions?
ALL: '" (Laughter) ...
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Hearing none.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Did my voice change that much?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, I just saw a hand point to you, Mr. Hokama, so we'll give you
credit on that one.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: That's okay. Go, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Alright, I will call for the vote. All those in favor say aye.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed. Okay. Thank you very much, Members, the item
is passed unanimously.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Hokama, Kawano and
Tavares, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Vice-Chair Kane

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPTION of resolution and FILING of communication

ITEM NO. 51: RE: PROPOSED RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A GRANT OF A
LICENSE TO USE COUNTY REAL PROPERTY TO MAUl HOLDINGS, LTD.
(C.C. NO. 01-157)

CHAIR MOLINA: And finally, we come to our last item for today Item 51, which relates
to a proposed resolution authorizing a grant of a license to Maui Holdings,
Limited. Purpose of the proposed resolution is to allow Maui Holdings, Limited to
continue to use an existing stairway, which encroaches over a County sewer
easement. Mr. Arakawa, of Public Works you have the floor.
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MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This request was actually brought to our
attention by the landowner, Maui Holdings, when they discovered that the, the
existing stairway to their building encroached on a sewer easement. And the
sewer easement also had been there for a long time, I can't tell you the exact
date but it's been there for a very long time. When the encroachment was
discovered our Wastewater Reclamation Division evaluated the request and they
found that the stairway actually is, it is over the easement but it is not located
over the actual sewer line. There's an 8-inch sewer line in the area. So, the
agreement allows the stairway to be there. If in the event we need to demolish
the stairway it will be done and the actual reconstruction of the stairway would be
done by the owner and, and not us. There would be no County cost for that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Questions from the floor, Members?
Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah where, where is this exactly?
MR. ARAKAWA: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The writing on the map is so small I can't read where
you're ...
MR. ARAKAWA: I'm sorry, it's in Eluene Place that's a cul-de-sac in, right up of Waiehu
Beach Road. I believe there's that. . .
.
CHAI R MOll NA: Page 10 I believe in the, the ...
MR. ARAKAWA: '" Ray's Deli, there's that service, service station right at the corner
of Waiehu Beach Road and Eluene.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, yeah. Oh, okay, okay down there.
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, Milton, in, in this particular case does it cause
any kind of a hardship for the County?
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MR. ARAKAWA: You, your question is whether the existing stairway causes any
hardship or ... ?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: All, alii want to do is, know is whether or not it causes
any hardship by having this agreement?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, in fact it had gone for a number of years without being detected
and it was just found out due to the owner informing us. So, that's why it was
brought before the committee and we just wanted to formalize the agreement
that ...
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If there's no hardship I can see ...
MR. ARAKAWA: ... the County will have no cost if in fact we do need to demolish that
that stairway at some pOint in the future.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, from a liability standpoint I know the owner has
waived liability for the County. So, we, from the County standpoint, Howard, this
is okay? We don't, we can't get sued for anything that happens?
MR. FUKUSHIMA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, I'm okay with it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, you know, looking at the, the map that shows
the side, the easement and the sidewalk, the one I guess is the most detailed of
the maps where the speckled area -- I don't know what the speckled area
is -- but the easement is, is it 9 feet wide and more? Is it the line that diagonally
crosses the, the stairway picture?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, the, the easement, that's easement nine on your map-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. ARAKAWA: -- it's triangular in shape a skinny triangle.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
Okay.
So, I mean, with the, given the, the
configuration of this wouldn't it make or would it make any sense to go and
change that line to make it outside where the stairway is and then sell it to the
owner? It doesn't look like it's a ... you know, or is it a useful piece of property
for the County? 'Cause it does kind of have a weird shape.
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, it's not over the sewer line now but I suppose we, we would
want to preserve our options in the future just in case we, we do need it. So that
that was the reason for the drafting of the agreement as it is.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Wait, you said that's an old sewer line that's in here?
MR. ARAKAWA: The easement has been in effect for ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Long time.
MR. ARAKAWA: ... yeah a number of years and the, the sewer line has been there
also for a number of years.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you. And then I had mentioned that,
Mr. Chair, because I think because of our technology where our measuring is so
much more accurate that we're finding all kinds of encroachments because of,
our technique has gotten better not because somebody purposely went over the
line. It's that that, you know, back in those days when they used their thumb to
figure out where the line was and now we've got, you know, global positioning
satellites to figure out these lines. You know, maybe we gotta look at turning
over some property if the County doesn't need it 'cause it's really not through
anybody's fault that these encroachments have taken place in a lot of cases.
CHAIR MOLINA: That's an interesting point you bring up for everybody's information.
This agreement I believe was first enacted about 25 years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: A lot of things have changed in 25 years, so ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Just in Milton's spare time ... (chuckle) ... he can
look at this issue.
CHAIR MOLINA:
Okay.
I'm sure Mr. Arakawa will take that request under
consideration. Members, any other discussion? Okay, hearing none. The Chair
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will entertain a motion to recommend the adoption of the proposed resolution and
the filing of the communication.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: It's been moved by Mr. Arakawa and seconded by Mr. Kawano. Any
discussion? Hearing none. All those in favor of the motion say aye.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed. Okay. Thank you very much. The Chair will mark
it unanimous.

VOTE:

AYES:

Council members Arakawa, Carroll, Hokama, Kawano and
Tavares, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Vice-Chair Kane

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPTION of resolution and FILING of communication

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, Mr. Chair, I'm, I'm-CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, Member Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, before you adjourn the meeting ... you know on,
on the bike tours fees, Item No ....
CHAIR MOLINA: 56.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
. . . 56.
What, what did you do with the
communication, did you, did you file, get filed?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: I believe we passed the bill but deferred it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: We passed the bill.
CHAIR MOLINA: We passed the bill and deferred it since there are other issues-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh no, I'm sorry not 56 ... 47.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh,47. We did pass the bill as amended on the floor today.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I was going to ask, Mr. Chair, if they, if this could
be the. pictures, that communication with the pictures could be referred to Item 56
to become part of the record I mean. I forgot to mention it when we were there
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Okay, so the pictures belong to 40, Item 47 along and Item 56.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Pardon me.
CHAIR MOLINA: Those pictures you wanted referred to the item to be kept in the
binder is that what you're asking?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: To be kept in the binder under -- right now it's under
47.
CHAIR MOLINA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And I'd like to move it to 40, to 50 ... 56.
CHAIR MOLINA: So we totally take it out of 47 and move it to 56.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Yeah, now that we're filing it. I don't know.
Mr. Fukushima, do we need to reconsider this in order to get that communication
moved over or memo?
COUNCILMEMBER .HOKAMA:
committee --

Somebody should just submit it as part of the

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'll, you know what, I'll just submit, I'll just take it out of
my binder and submit it separately and make it cleaner. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Any other questions or concerns on any of the items today?
Okay, is there any announcements? Okay, hearing no announcements. The
Chair appreciates as always your dedication and professionalism and desire
and -- oh, we have a request from Mr. Carroll for an announcement. They're
pointing to you.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, Mr. Arakawa, I'm sorry. Okay, it looked like your finger was
pointing to Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I don't even want to go there, no. The 1:30 meeting
we're gonna try and start as close to on time as possible because I want to
adjourn it at 4 o'clock at the latest 'cause we have a meeting tonight at 6 o'clock.
So, as long the Council Members are here, I would appreciate trying to get there
for that meeting as quickly as possible.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, I'm sure all of us will make an effort to be on time. We do have
some very heavy issues to discuss in your Land Use Committee meetings this
afternoon at -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, though the 1:30 meeting not so much but we
need to be able to get through that 'cause we have the 6 o'clock meeting which
may take hours and if we take too long in the 1:30 meeting we're not gonna have
dinner breaks and all of that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Okay, hearing no other announcements
this meeting is adjourned .... (gavel) ...
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